          1

          2  CITY COUNCIL

          3

             CITY OF NEW YORK

          4

             -------------------------------x

          5

             THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE MINUTES

          6

                       of the

          7

             COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          8

             -------------------------------x

          9

         10                 September 27, 2004

                            Start:  10:15 a.m.

         11                 Recess: 11:45 a.m.

         12                 Council of the City of New York

                            250 Broadway, 14th Floor

         13                 New York, New York

         14

                  B E F O R E:

         15

                         PETER VALLONE

         16                                Chairperson,

         17

                         COUNCIL MEMBERS:   Erik Dilan

         18                                 Helen Foster

                                            Allan Jennings

         19                                 Melinda Katz

                                            Hiram Monserrate

         20                                 David Yassky

                                            Sara Gonzalez

         21

         22

         23

         24       LEGAL-EASE COURT REPORTING SERVICES, INC.

                         17 Battery Place -  Suite 1308

         25              New York, New York 10004

                              (800) 756-3410

                                                            2

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S

          3

             Edwin Young

          4  Assistant Chief Executive Officer

             for the Chief of Department

          5  New York City Police Department

          6  Jonathan Greenspun

             Commissioner

          7  Mayor's Community Assistance Unit

          8  Susan Petito

             Assistant Commissioner

          9  New York City Police Department

             Office of the Deputy Commissioner of Legal Matters

         10

             John Garrish

         11  Deputy Chief and Commanding Officer

             Office of Management Analysis Planning

         12  New York City Police Department

         13  Frank Ricci

             Director of Government Affairs

         14  Rent Stabilization Association

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            3

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Good morning,

          3  everyone. This is a hearing on the Public Safety

          4  Committee. Let me start off by acknowledging the

          5  presence of two esteemed guests we have today. We

          6  are joined by Tony McKempsey and Lacona Bossi, who

          7  are visiting from Belfast and are participating in

          8  the Northern Ireland Peace Builders Program with

          9  Columbia University. Mr. McKempsey has served 26

         10  years in police service and Mr. Bossi is a member of

         11  the Northern Ireland Policing Board and a

         12  coordinator for various community organizations.

         13  Thank you for joining us today.

         14                 Today, we're having a hearing of the

         15  Public Safety Committee. We'll be considering the

         16  recent merger of the NYPD Anti-Graffiti Unit with

         17  the Transit Bureau Vandals Unit and the impact of

         18  the merger on the City's efforts to fight graffiti.

         19  We'll also hear follow-up testimony from the

         20  Administration regarding Intro. 299, introduced by

         21  both Council Member Monserrate and myself, a bill

         22  that will impose a fine against certain property

         23  owners who fail to remove graffiti in a timely

         24  fashion. This will also allow the City to remove the

         25  graffiti when the private homeowner fails to.
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          2                 Later on we'll be voting on Intro.

          3  364A, which increases the penalty for drag racing,

          4  and Intro. 433, which deals with police reporting to

          5  the Council. I'll speak about those when we have a

          6  quorum, a few more Council members who are coming

          7  over from various other committees which are going

          8  on at the same time.

          9                 Graffiti continues to be a public

         10  nuisance for our communities when it degrades the

         11  quality of life in neighborhoods across the City.

         12  The merger of these two units together with the

         13  almost complete elimination by the Department of

         14  Transportation of its bridge cleaning unit regarding

         15  graffiti raised some serious concerns.

         16                 In addition, one of the common

         17  complaints I hear from my constituents is the

         18  proliferation of graffiti on certain buildings. For

         19  this reason, we introduce 299 which creates a civil

         20  penalty for those who do not remove graffiti from

         21  commercial and large residential buildings. Then,

         22  importantly, allows the City to come and remove that

         23  graffiti when the private owner fails to do so.

         24  Probably one of the toughest bills in the entire

         25  country. As you know, no one is exempt from graffiti
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          2  in this committee. We are obviously proponents of

          3  holding those who damage the property responsible

          4  for their actions by imposing stiff penalties. And

          5  that's why this Committee has various measures to

          6  combat graffiti such as doubling the penalties,

          7  doubling the penalties for someone caught doing

          8  graffiti for the second time.

          9                 In addition, we outlawed the sale of

         10  etching acid to minors. We are making it tougher on

         11  the people who actually do the graffiti. But that is

         12  not enough. Graffiti is still proliferating in this

         13  City. Now the people who own the buildings need to

         14  do their fair share also. They have an obligation to

         15  remove that graffiti.

         16                 Jonathan Greenspun, the Commissioner

         17  on the Mayor's Community Assistance Unit is here

         18  today and also testified before this Committee in

         19  December 2003. He indicated that although he

         20  applauded the concept of the bill, he believed it

         21  might be unworkable and unfairly penalized

         22  responsible caring homeowners and small business

         23  owners to become the target of graffiti. The

         24  Commissioner, however, said he was eager to work

         25  with us in order to come up with a workable solution
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          2  and so we'll hear from him today. This second

          3  hearing is designed to hear generally about the

          4  City's anti- graffiti campaign and specifics about

          5  the recent merger of the Anti- Graffiti Unit and any

          6  other ways the Council can assist the Mayor in

          7  eradicating graffiti from our streets.

          8                 I'm joined today by members of the

          9  Public Safety Committee. On my right we have Council

         10  Member Katz, Council Member Yassky, Council Member

         11  Foster and Council Member Dilan on my left. Welcome

         12  to you all. Commissioner, welcome. Also, welcome to

         13  you, Chief Young. The floor is yours.

         14                 CHIEF YOUNG: Good morning, Mr.

         15  Chairman and members of the Council. I'm Assistant

         16  Chief Ed Young, the Executive Officer to the Chief

         17  of the Department, the New York Police Department.

         18  On behalf of our Police Commissioner, Raymond Kelly

         19  and Chief of Department, Joseph Esposito, I am

         20  pleased to be here today to discuss the planned

         21  consolidation and reinvigoration of the Department's

         22  efforts to combat graffiti.

         23                 Graffiti is a destructive offense

         24  that communicates a message of disorder and

         25  lawlessness in a neighborhood. As you know, the
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          2  Department has made significant efforts to address

          3  and prevent graffiti, including many elements such

          4  as taking enforcement action against violators,

          5  maintaining a database of intelligence information

          6  about graffiti tags and offenders and working with

          7  the Mayor's Anti- Graffiti Task Force to facilitate

          8  removal.

          9                 However, we have recently taken a

         10  fresh look at the issue of graffiti to find ways in

         11  which our efforts may be improved and have developed

         12  a plan to sharpen our focus and deploy our resources

         13  more effectively. The plan is a work in progress and

         14  is anticipated to be implemented in mid- October. I

         15  will be pleased to describe it for you now.

         16                 First, the Department has created a

         17  position of the NYPD Citywide Anti- Graffiti

         18  Coordinator in which I will serve. It will be my

         19  mission to generally oversee the Department's anti-

         20  graffiti efforts and to work together with other

         21  City agencies to coordinate our activities. My role

         22  will include developing and monitoring performance

         23  indicators related to anti- graffiti efforts and

         24  developing new initiatives as we move forward.

         25                 Second, we have created the Transient
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          2  and Graffiti Section to be headed by a Captain

          3  within the Special Operations District of the

          4  Transit Bureau. This section will be comprised of

          5  the currently existing Homeless Outreach Unit and

          6  the new Citywide Vandals Task Force. The Citywide

          7  Vandals Task Force will combine the Transit Bureau's

          8  Vandals Unit with the Special Operations Division

          9  Anti- Graffiti Vandalism Unit to form one entity,

         10  whose primary mission will be to combat graffiti

         11  throughout the City. They have the necessary

         12  expertise and experience to handle investigations

         13  and enforcement themselves as well as provide

         14  leadership and assistance to the rest of the

         15  Department in this area.

         16                 Third, we are enhancing the resources

         17  specifically devoted to anti- graffiti efforts. In

         18  addition to the personnel currently assigned to the

         19  existing units, we are adding new resources; one

         20  lieutenant, two sergeants, and ten police officers

         21  for a total of three lieutenants, 13 sergeants, and

         22  60 police officers. Fourth, we are reinvigorating

         23  the three essential elements of a successful anti-

         24  graffiti initiative: Enforcement, cleanup and

         25  education.
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          2                 With respect to enforcement, there

          3  will be a new emphasis on localized responsibility.

          4  We are identifying an anti- graffiti coordinator at

          5  every command level within the Patrol, Housing and

          6  Transit Bureaus of the Department. At the precinct

          7  level, each precinct, police service area and

          8  transit district will assign a lieutenant to that

          9  role. Each borough will have a Deputy Inspector or

         10  above so assigned; and each of the three boroughs

         11  will have an appropriate borough coordinator

         12  assigned.

         13                 All of the localized coordinators

         14  will have a liaison relationship with each other and

         15  with me as the Citywide Coordinator. All enforcement

         16  activity at a local level will be communicated to

         17  the Citywide Vandals Task Force, so that they may

         18  provide their expertise and assist officers in the

         19  field as well as track the local enforcement actions

         20  taken.

         21                 With respect to cleanup and

         22  education, we will be designing initiatives as we go

         23  forward, working with our partners like the

         24  Community Assistance Unit, to involve and educate

         25  the public about the importance of immediate removal
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          2  of graffiti and what a destructive activity it is to

          3  engage in. For example, we will expect local

          4  personnel to encourage store owners, community

          5  members, school personnel and students to report

          6  graffiti and participate in cleanup operations.

          7                 Fifth, we are making technological

          8  advances to the manner in which the Citywide Vandals

          9  Task Force will operate. We are retooling the

         10  graffiti database to include information about

         11  graffiti tags and offenders including photographs of

         12  both, with the input to be centralized and performed

         13  by the Task Force, but the database information

         14  available to the local commands. We will also give

         15  the Task Force enhanced ability to access the 311

         16  system as well as the responsibility to determine

         17  where incoming complaints should be assigned. The

         18  Task Force will also be given access to the

         19  Department's Sprint or 911 system, so that they may

         20  monitor 911 calls of graffiti in progress.

         21                 Sixth, we will reinvigorate the anti-

         22  graffiti reward program by working with the New York

         23  City Police Foundation to fund the reward of up to

         24  $500 leading to the arrest of a graffiti vandal. We

         25  will also develop a marketing strategy to encourage
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          2  the public to make the reports which might lead to

          3  an arrest.

          4                 Seventh, we will build into our

          5  initiative strong oversight and quality assurance

          6  through the use of TrafficStat, where borough and

          7  local representatives attend weekly sessions on a

          8  rotating basis to discuss the status of their

          9  commands and address particular issues of concern.

         10  We will also utilize CompStat for this purpose as

         11  needed.

         12                 In sum, we are committed to enhancing

         13  our focus on graffiti and using our resources more

         14  effectively, not only to catch graffiti vandals, but

         15  also to prevent and deter this very destructive

         16  crime. We appreciate the Council's attention to the

         17  issue, and we will be pleased to answer any

         18  questions you may have.

         19                 COMMISSIONER GREENSPUN: Good morning,

         20  Chairman Vallone and members of the Committee. My

         21  name is Jonathan Greenspun and I am Commissioner of

         22  the Mayor's Community Assistance Unit. My agency

         23  serves as the lead coordinator of the Mayor's Anti-

         24  Graffiti Task Force. As I previously testified on

         25  Intro. 604 of 2003, we do have some concerns
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          2  pertaining to the language in the proposed bill, now

          3  Intro. 299. The first relates to the definition of

          4  graffiti.

          5                 As written, the definition includes

          6  virtually any mark placed on a building that is

          7  visible to the public and is not approved by the

          8  owner or a tenant. This definition creates a loop

          9  hole when the violation is adjudicated, since a

         10  simple statement by the building owner or tenant

         11  that he or she approves the graffiti would preclude

         12  the imposition of a penalty. It is highly unlikely

         13  that a person would pay up to a $300 fine when all

         14  he or she needs to do to avoid the fine is state

         15  that he or she approves of the graffiti.

         16                 In addition, this definition creates

         17  enforcement problems since the person issuing the

         18  notice of violation could not know without

         19  potentially extensive investigation whether the

         20  owner or the tenant of the building approved the

         21  graffiti. Another similar concern is that the

         22  legislation seems to permit a tenant to authorize

         23  the cleanup on a building that he or she does not

         24  own.

         25                 Finally, there is the issue of cost.
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          2  There is no mechanism in the bill to recover the

          3  City's clean- up cost from a building owner who

          4  fails to remove the graffiti at his or her own

          5  expense. There are numerous operational issues that

          6  also have fiscal implications, which would make

          7  issuing these notices to clean up and the necessary

          8  follow up to issue a violation if necessary,

          9  virtually impossible. Additionally, there also

         10  liability issues when the City is required to go

         11  onto property without the homeowner or business

         12  owner consent. All of the above contribute to the

         13  difficulties in implementing anti- graffiti

         14  legislation.

         15                 I would also be remiss if I didn't

         16  mention our belief that this legislation may

         17  unfairly penalize responsible caring homeowners and

         18  small business owners who become the target of

         19  graffiti vandals by having them subsequently be

         20  subject to fines because of that same graffiti. We

         21  believe the NYPD's strategy to redeploy their

         22  resources, as you just heard outlined by Chief

         23  Young, and strengthen their focus on graffiti will

         24  go a long way toward improving the already

         25  impressive accomplishments of the Department against
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          2  graffiti and supplement the work the Task Force is

          3  doing to keep New York City a wonderful place to

          4  live, work and play.

          5                 Let me just add which is not written

          6  in my testimony, that I want to applaud this

          7  Committee, in particular you, Chairman Vallone,

          8  because although this testimony seems somewhat

          9  negative in terms of the legislation, we do have a

         10  very positive working relationship and hopefully in

         11  the question and answer sessions, we can come up

         12  with some sort of solution and if not through

         13  legislation, certainly through some practical

         14  operations changes. Both whether it's on my end as

         15  head of the Graffiti Task Force Unit or on the

         16  enforcement end which Chief Young can outline for

         17  you. Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you both.

         19  Let me begin though with Chief Young or should I say

         20  NYPD City Anti- Graffiti Coordinator Young.

         21  Congratulations. I was not aware that was your new

         22  position. When does that become effective?

         23                 CHIEF YOUNG: Well, it's effective

         24  now. We expect to put some meat on this seven step

         25  program that I laid out to you probably the step off
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          2  date in mid- October. Right now, we haven't

          3  officially by orders combined the two units. We

          4  haven't added the additional staff yet. All that is

          5  in the planning process.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That was my next

          7  question. At this point, there hasn't been no

          8  official merger. How many people presently exist in

          9  the NYPD Anti- Graffiti Unit?

         10                 CHIEF YOUNG: You're talking the two

         11  units?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: No, I'm talking

         13  not the Transit Bureau, the NYPD.

         14                 CHIEF YOUNG: You have one lieutenant,

         15  three sergeants and eight police officers.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And that's for

         17  the entire City?

         18                 CHIEF YOUNG: That's correct.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: How many

         20  presently exist in the Transit Vandals Unit?

         21                 CHIEF YOUNG: I think there is 43

         22  police officers and one lieutenant and I think four

         23  or six sergeants.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I believe that

         25  you testified that the goal in the new merge unit
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          2  would be to have a total of about 76 officers or

          3  members including lieutenants and sergeants.

          4                 CHIEF YOUNG: Right. The total

          5  compliment would be 60 police officers, three

          6  lieutenants and the number of sergeants was 13

          7  sergeants. They would be given oversight on the

          8  ground by a captain which is a new position.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Who will that

         10  captain be? Do we know?

         11                 CHIEF YOUNG: That's Captain Jeffrey

         12  Fortunato (phonetic). In fact, he's here right now.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Congratulations,

         14  Captain. You're testifying here today that the new

         15  unit will not have fewer members, the new merge

         16  unit, than the present to existing units combined?

         17                 CHIEF YOUNG: It will have more than

         18  the present units as they exist today.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That was one of

         20  our concerns. Thank you for testifying to that. Our

         21  other concern has been brought to us by various

         22  offices and union members and it has been made

         23  public already, is that the new unit will have

         24  additional duties in addition to just fighting

         25  graffiti which will take the focus off fighting
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          2  graffiti. I didn't notice that you testified about

          3  that. Can you please testify as to what duties this

          4  new unit will have?

          5                 CHIEF YOUNG: Their primary duties

          6  will be graffiti and vandalism. How the unit would

          7  be structured is that you would have in terms of the

          8  unit a Citywide Anti- Graffiti Vandals Task Force

          9  and that would be broken geographically where you'll

         10  have one side of the equation responsible for those

         11  issues in the Bronx and Manhattan and the other side

         12  responsible for Staten Island, Brooklyn and Queens.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So when you say

         14  vandalism, what are speaking about?

         15                 CHIEF YOUNG: We're speaking about

         16  graffiti. We're speaking about vandalism that takes

         17  place in the subway system. It would not be a

         18  specialized group of people that handle one

         19  particular thing, but they would be responsible for

         20  the entire geographical area in coordination with

         21  their partners in the precinct, housing development

         22  and transit districts. While we're talking about a

         23  centralized enforcement unit, we have to put that in

         24  context of coordinating with the various subunits,

         25  precincts, housing, transit units that they
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          2  coordinate with. Again, that is coordinated on top

          3  by myself and on the various bureaus levels and

          4  borough levels as well. There is a lot of liaisons

          5  and coordinating to ensure that everything is being

          6  addressed in the geographical boundaries.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I'm still

          8  confused as to the actual duties. We are very

          9  concerned here at this Committee that the primary

         10  focus is still going to be graffiti and that will

         11  not be deluded by too many other jobs that this new

         12  unit will have to now occupy itself with. What type

         13  of vandalism will this unit be responsible for?

         14                 CHIEF YOUNG: Primarily the mission is

         15  going to be handling graffiti. Graffiti in the

         16  streets, you'll have more people responsible for

         17  what's taking place on the street level. On the

         18  specific matter of painting graffiti, you're going

         19  to have more resources assigned to that primary

         20  function. At the same time, they're going to be

         21  cross trained in a number of other things as it

         22  relates to if their mission takes them down into a

         23  subway system, just as people who primarily in the

         24  subway now will have to go up into the streets.

         25  There is going to be part of a cross training to
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          2  ensure safety and things of that nature. But the

          3  primary mission is to focus on the Citywide

          4  enforcement efforts as it relates to graffiti.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So there will be

          6  additional training for both units then? The above

          7  ground people will now be trained in subway and

          8  dealing with the crime in the subway and vice

          9  versus?

         10                 CHIEF YOUNG: Primarily the people in

         11  the subway systems were doing work on the street as

         12  well. As we look at this closely, they get plains

         13  clothes training now. I don't envision much

         14  additional training as it relates to them. But by

         15  the people that are newly assigned to the Citywide

         16  Vandals Task Force and those that are assigned to

         17  the SOD, Anti- Graffiti Unit now will be given

         18  additional training as it relates to subway

         19  conditions, track safety, et cetera.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I'm going to ask

         21  my members to not leave. There is another member on

         22  the way. And as soon as we get six, we will be

         23  voting on the other issues I discussed. While we're

         24  on the topic of the merger, let me just go then to

         25  Council Member Katz and whoever else may have
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          2  questions on the merger before we move onto the

          3  removal of graffiti from private property. Upon

          4  further review, we now decided to ask questions on

          5  both topics. I'll come back to my questions on the

          6  graffiti bill. Council Member Katz.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I really just

          8  wanted to use the opportunity to try to gain some of

          9  your expertise. As you know in our communities,

         10  graffiti is a huge issue in both residential and

         11  commercial. I find it to be a little more difficult

         12  to deal with on commercial because we have trouble

         13  getting permission by the owners to clean up. Since

         14  we have your expertise here, I just would like you

         15  for a second discuss the difference between getting

         16  permission by landlords on residential buildings

         17  which by our bill is defined as six or more units

         18  and commercial buildings. Our bill requires that if

         19  we can't get permission by landlord to clean up and

         20  we can in and do it as being the City. I'd just

         21  would like to hear your comments on the difference

         22  in dealing with residential buildings versus

         23  commercial.

         24                 COMMISSIONER GREENSPUN: You're

         25  correct, Councilwoman Katz, when you say that it's
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          2  obviously a lot easier to identify a homeowner than

          3  it is a commercial owner. Often, what we try to do

          4  in the case of commercial is we will be in an area

          5  where we're cleaning graffiti, we'll knock on a

          6  door. If there is no response, we will utilize the

          7  City system to try to identify the owner or the

          8  managing agent and then contact them that way. There

          9  have been a  handful of times where we have been

         10  able to contact the owner where for whatever reason

         11  after contacting them, they say, we don't want to

         12  sign the waiver.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Just for the

         14  record, can you distinguish commercial and

         15  residential? When you say the owner --

         16                 COMMISSIONER GREENSPUN: Commercial.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: -- You're

         18  talking about commercial.

         19                 COMMISSIONER GREENSPUN: We're talking

         20  about commercial right now. In the case of a

         21  homeowner, unless someone is permanently out of town

         22  or they have dual state residences, it's not really

         23  an issue. Number one, I think, the homeowners tend

         24  to have more of a sensitivity to when they've been

         25  vandalized and they want to see it removed. When it
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          2  comes to commercial owners, the question is whether

          3  or not they own the property, but they may not live

          4  in the City or in state and so, yes, there is a

          5  complication sometimes of trying to locate those

          6  commercial owners.

          7                 In the cases where we are out

          8  cleaning graffiti, sometimes it's nothing more than

          9  knocking on the door and saying, look we've got a

         10  truck here. We've been cleaning up the area. We see

         11  you've got graffiti. Would you like us to clean it?

         12  It doesn't cost you a dime and they'll generally

         13  just sign the waiver and say, no problem. By the

         14  way, sometimes we actually get contacted through the

         15  311 system by property owners and then we schedule a

         16  clean up.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: But again,

         18  because I'm trying to get to a point here, the

         19  residential units, six or more units in a building,

         20  you find are easier to get permission to clean or

         21  they themselves will clean it easier than a

         22  commercial tenant?

         23                 COMMISSIONER GREENSPUN: Generally

         24  it's easier. Our experience has been that it's

         25  easier to find a homeowner than it is a commercial

                                                            23

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  owner. Although, we have pretty good success with

          3  identifying commercial owners as well.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay. Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Commissioner

          6  Greenspun, thank you for your testimony. You

          7  mentioned a few problems you have with it. Let me

          8  say that we agree with the potential loop hole

          9  situation you discussed regarding approval and we're

         10  working on a way to eliminate that and still keep it

         11  fair. Do you have any thoughts in that regard?

         12                 COMMISSIONER GREENSPUN: I think that

         13  in terms of coming up with a workable solution,

         14  legislation may not be the way to go. I dare say the

         15  reason you probably have so few municipalities who

         16  have this legislation, is they too have probably

         17  come up with the same problems. I think that there

         18  are a couple of things that we can do. Number one,

         19  let me just sort of frame in real terms what Chief

         20  Young's testimony and this reorganization is going

         21  to do to I believe, help with the enforcement end.

         22                 Let's just take the one aspect that

         23  talks about having a liaison in every single one of

         24  the precincts including the PSA's. That is an

         25  extremely valuable resource to the Mayor's Anti-
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          2  Graffiti Task Force. Because what it will enable us

          3  to do, let me give you a real situation. Let's just

          4  say that we've gone out to clean the side of a

          5  commercial establishment once and then a couple of

          6  weeks later we found that the vandal had returned

          7  and defaced the property again. So we go out a

          8  second time and we clean it again. Then there is a

          9  third time. Well, what I'll probably do is rather

         10  than just keep going out to the same location and

         11  cleaning it and cleaning it and cleaning it, what I

         12  will do is, I will contact the Chief or his key

         13  person. We will find out who in the confines of that

         14  particular precinct is the graffiti liaison and what

         15  we'll do is we will call them up and say, look, we

         16  got this business establishment. It's been hit three

         17  times. Is there anyway you can maybe get some extra

         18  patrols? Is there anyway you make this sort of a

         19  location where you can frequent so that you could

         20  actually catch the person in the act? That's sort of

         21  a practical step to try to help with repeat

         22  offenders.

         23                 The other real solution, I think is

         24  there needs to be some sort of public awareness

         25  campaign and we're more than willing to partner with
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          2  the Council on this, about what is available through

          3  the Anti- Graffiti Task Force to commercial owners

          4  and to homeowners that there is an entity known as

          5  the Mayor's Anti- Graffiti Task Force who will free

          6  of charge come to your neighborhood. We may not be

          7  able to get there the next day, but we could

          8  certainly schedule it in an way that you would get

          9  some relief to come out and free of charge and all

         10  it takes is your signature on a waiver to go ahead

         11  and clean the property. I think that one of the

         12  things we find is matter of fact, I don't think

         13  there is an occasion where we don't find this, is

         14  that if someone has never used our services before,

         15  they are pleasantly surprised to hear about them.

         16  They tell their neighbors, they tell their friends.

         17  What can happen is, is that when someone does find

         18  themselves a victim of vandalism through graffiti,

         19  we can come out and clean.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You're

         21  absolutely right. Let me commend you. Because every

         22  time my office is worked with yours, you have shown

         23  up promptly and clean the graffiti in my

         24  neighborhood which we have requested you to clean

         25  working the homeowners. That's one reason why I
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          2  don't abide the rationale that this may cost private

          3  homeowners to clean their property. Because it won't

          4  cost them. Right now if they give the City

          5  permission, the City will come and clean their

          6  property. My office has volunteers that I fund that

          7  will come and clean their property free of charge.

          8  Not enough people know about that. But there is no

          9  reason, no financial reason for a private homeowner

         10  or commercial owner not to get their property

         11  cleaned.

         12                 You also discussed repeat offenders

         13  and that's one of the purposes of this bill. Every

         14  time a property gets cleaned, if a graffiti vandal

         15  wants to tag it again, they have to risk getting

         16  caught again. The more times they try it, the easier

         17  it is to catch them. As you know and especially the

         18  experts in this room today know, every time you

         19  clean graffiti, it makes it less and less likely to

         20  reappear. After the first time, they usually go back

         21  again. After the second, third, they don't because

         22  the idea is to keep this up there so people can see

         23  it. If they realize you're cleaning that location,

         24  they don't continue to come back which is another

         25  reason why we're introducing this bill.
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          2                 You mentioned cost to the City. I've

          3  got to disagree with you there. I can't imagine the

          4  fines that you would be able to gather from this

          5  legislation won't offset the cost of cleaning any of

          6  these private properties and I'm sure that the City

          7  would not undertake to clean private property unless

          8  it was some sort of huge eyesore and it wouldn't be

          9  hitting these places too often.

         10                 You also mentioned some operational

         11  issues you had problems with. But as you mentioned,

         12  this existed under municipalities in Philadelphia

         13  and in D.C., as far as I know of. They obviously

         14  have worked through these difficulties and I'm sure

         15  that the experts we have sitting over there can do

         16  that also. You mentioned that and this is something

         17  that I've heard from a lot of people that you would

         18  be remiss if you didn't mention your belief that

         19  this legislation may unfairly penalize responsible

         20  caring homeowners. Let's get this straight. We're

         21  not talking about homeowners, we're talking about

         22  six families and up and these buildings usually have

         23  management companies and small business owners who

         24  become the target of graffiti vandals by having them

         25  subsequently be subject to fines because of that

                                                            28

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  same graffiti. That is a concern. But you know what,

          3  my neighborhood is unfairly penalized by having it

          4  degraded by graffiti on private buildings when the

          5  owners refuse to clean it. I understand there are

          6  arguments on both sides of the issue. They may be

          7  sick of cleaning it, but we're sick of looking at

          8  it. This is a far reaching measure and it's not one

          9  that we do lightly. It's something I believe needs

         10  to be done.

         11                 Also, you were allowed enforcement

         12  discretion. If you believe one homeowner is doing a

         13  good job of cleaning it, but being hit constantly,

         14  don't ticket them. That's within your discretion

         15  obviously. I've been speaking, do you have any

         16  comments of anything I just said?

         17                 COMMISSIONER GREENSPUN: Couple of

         18  things. In terms of the recidivism problem, a vandal

         19  going back to the same area, the other thing that we

         20  have available and there are neighborhoods who take

         21  advantage of this is the Mayor's Paint Program. This

         22  is donated paint. It's donated privately. There is

         23  no cost to the City and what we will often do is

         24  just say look, because we can't keep coming back, we

         25  will provide you with paint and rollers and brushes.
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          2  In some cases, if a specific establishment gets hit

          3  again, it's the owner who could actually without any

          4  cost help repair. I think in terms of what you

          5  pointed out in the testimony about what we feel is

          6  unworkable, I also think that the issue of the loop

          7  hole is something that really needs to be tackled in

          8  a meaningful way.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That's the

         10  approval loop hole?

         11                 COMMISSIONER GREENSPUN: The approval

         12  loop hole, right. Because right now the way the law

         13  exists is the key word I believe is unauthorized. If

         14  anyone goes and puts anything because graffiti

         15  itself can probably not really be defined. But if

         16  anyone puts anything on a building, if someone

         17  authorizes it, then the penalty would not be

         18  enforced.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You're

         20  absolutely right. In other bureaus that handle this,

         21  they City actually has to go forward and having

         22  declared a nuisance. Something we're looking at,

         23  we're trying to avoid the cost involved in that and

         24  the time involved in that. But there may be no way

         25  around it. Something we're looking at. But we agree
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          2  with you. The way it exists though, the homeowner --

          3  I'm sorry, not a homeowner, the multiple family

          4  owner or the commercial owner would have to come in

          5  and prove that there was authorization. And the more

          6  times you had to do that, perhaps he would find it

          7  easier to just clean the darn building rather than

          8  continually come down and plead his case if this was

          9  authorized. I'd like to go to Council Member Dilan.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Thank you,

         11  Chairman Vallone. Just a few brief questions for

         12  both. I'll start with Chief Young. Just under the

         13  new proposed merger of the two Departments, you're

         14  going to enhance resources which I think is a great

         15  thing. How will you propose to fund it? Is it

         16  something that's going to dragged from the existing

         17  PS budget of the Police Department or will there be

         18  another means that you will fund the additional

         19  personnel?

         20                 CHIEF YOUNG: It will be from the

         21  current staffing levels.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: And for Mr.

         23  Greenspun on Intro. 299, I think currently and I

         24  don't know if this is wise for me to do it, but I

         25  think currently my feelings on the bill are similar
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          2  to that of the Administration and I think this is

          3  the first time I've ever said that in the Council.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: It's great there

          5  are cameras. It will catch you in everything.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Well personally

          7  and I'll say why because I think his unit was

          8  helpful in helping several commercial homeowners in

          9  removing graffiti from their buildings. One

         10  gentlemen in particular that sticks out had a

         11  commercial building, got brand new aluminum siding

         12  all over his building and then three days there was

         13  graffiti all over it. Now in my eyes, this gentlemen

         14  laid out a large amount of money to get aluminum

         15  siding and then less a week for it to be vandalized,

         16  I think he's the victim of a crime. He is the victim

         17  of a crime. But to also have the City turn around

         18  and pose fines on him for not being able to remove

         19  the graffiti after he spent a fortune on the

         20  aluminum siding, I think is somewhat unfair.

         21                 I know all cases in the City may not

         22  be like his, but there are some cases where

         23  homeowners can be affected and I think what you said

         24  about the public awareness campaign about your

         25  program is something that is sorely needed. Because

                                                            32

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  the Chairman is right, there is no reason why a

          3  homeowner cannot go without having graffiti removed

          4  free of charge. I would say that my neighborhood is

          5  highly victimized by graffiti. But the amount of

          6  homeowners and business owners that know about this

          7  program are simply not enough.

          8                 I would dare to say and you can

          9  correct me if I'm wrong that there would be

         10  additional stresses by your unit because I think in

         11  the current bill there are about five City agencies

         12  that are responsible for enforcement. That would

         13  lead to additional pressures by your Department to

         14  recoup costs. I don't know which City agency would

         15  be responsible for handling the cost of that. But we

         16  would see an increase of summons and therefore your

         17  unit would become extremely more busy in my opinion.

         18  I don't know if you care to comment.

         19                 COMMISSIONER GREENSPUN: It probably

         20  would. That is a concern. The questions is if we

         21  become too successful in spreading our message,

         22  whether or not people just simply rely on us all the

         23  time, can we really be everywhere? And that's

         24  something that we would have to look at in terms of

         25  numbers. I think what we keep getting back to is
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          2  this problem with how do we force someone to avail

          3  themselves of this benefit. That's something we need

          4  to focus on. What the Committee says, you need

          5  legislation. We've pointed out the problems with

          6  that legislation. And again, it is my experience

          7  that most people when they do find out about us,

          8  they do avail themselves. One of the ideas that we

          9  had in just some strategy meetings was maybe to put

         10  the existence of the Graffiti Task Force on the tax

         11  bills as sort of a public service announcement and

         12  then send those to the property owners.

         13                 The other things in terms of

         14  incentives is someone on my staff pointed out and I

         15  think rightly so and this actually happens. Before

         16  properties are assessed, we often get calls from

         17  owners to say, can you come out and clean. I'm about

         18  to have an assessment. Obviously, a graffiti laden

         19  wall is not going to contribute to the assessment

         20  being in the owner's favor. One question is whether

         21  or not maybe we could somehow tie that in. We have

         22  some ideas and again, I think as it was mentioned at

         23  the beginning of your opening statement, Chairman

         24  Vallone, we want to sit down and sort of come up

         25  with a workable solution and come up with something
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          2  that really addresses the problem in a way that can

          3  probably spread the word; get the message out and

          4  then hopefully combat the problem. And then again,

          5  being complimented by the reorganization that the

          6  Police Department is doing on the enforcement end. I

          7  think it will go a long way.

          8                 I should also mention I usually come

          9  prepared with statements about how much we've done

         10  and usually makes the testimony a little longer. I

         11  wanted to keep it short this time. We are on

         12  schedule to exceed the number of clean ups that we

         13  did last year. Last year, we did over 6,000

         14  individual clean up Citywide.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Which was an

         16  improvement over the year before.

         17                 COMMISSIONER GREENSPUN: Much over.

         18  We're on par to probably reach close to 8,000.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: I just would

         20  say, I agree also, Mr. Chairman, that the bill does

         21  have a lot of good, well meaning suggestions. I

         22  think my main issue is that we're going to be

         23  penalizing victims of a crime twice. One by imposing

         24  a fine after they've already been violated by

         25  vandals in their neighborhood. I'm not opposed to
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          2  maybe coming up with some form of legislation that

          3  will take care of the intent that what you wanted us

          4  to clean up neighborhoods. But I think this one

          5  maybe needs to be tweaked a little bit. I look

          6  forward to working with you on that.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

          8  Council Member. Let me just be clear. I also feel

          9  for the person and using your example of aluminum

         10  siding. Obviously, if they had six families and up

         11  and did put aluminum siding and did get graffiti on

         12  it, they would then be subject to this law. But it's

         13  important to realize that they would not be fined

         14  immediately. They would first be given notice and a

         15  chance for, say, 60 days to clean that property

         16  before they were ever liable for a fine. No one is

         17  just going to be hit with a fine because they have

         18  graffiti on their property. They are given a

         19  sufficient amount of time to clean it before they

         20  would ever be liable for any fine. I'm not sure if

         21  you are aware.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: No, I'm fully

         23  aware and I don't know I want to debate you on the

         24  bill because I may lose. I think in the case of this

         25  gentlemen, aluminum siding has a cost to it. There

                                                            36

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  is a cost assigned to it. It costs a lot of money

          3  and then for the gentlemen to within 30 to 60 days

          4  receive notice that he does have to spend additional

          5  funds to repair it, maybe somewhat unfair. That was

          6  my only point.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I agree. It is a

          8  big move. But it may be the lesser of the two evils.

          9  The alternative would be to leave that graffiti on

         10  there for the rest of the neighborhood to look at.

         11  But I completely understand your concerns and I look

         12  forward to working with you and perhaps making some

         13  changes. Council Member Yassky, yes, go right ahead.

         14  Since we have a quorum right now, I'd like to just

         15  take some votes and then we'll get right back to

         16  you.

         17                 The first vote we're going to have

         18  today concerns doubling the penalties for drag

         19  racing. This Committee held a hearing on Intro. 364

         20  which was a bill to increase the penalties for those

         21  who engage in illegal drag racing which I

         22  introduced. At that time, the Police Department did

         23  come in and support the bill, but suggested certain

         24  amendments. The Committee, the Speaker's Office

         25  worked closely with the Administration to craft a
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          2  bill that addressed the concerns raised at the

          3  hearing. I'm happy to report that Intro. 364A is the

          4  result. It is now supported by the Mayor, the Police

          5  Commissioner and the Speaker and it adds a new

          6  section to the City's Administrative Code to make it

          7  illegal to engage in any race, prohibition or

          8  contest of speed unless authorized under the State's

          9  Vehicle and Traffic Law, on any highway, street,

         10  alley, sidewalk or private, public parking lot or

         11  area.

         12                 The bill unlike the State law

         13  actually defines what constitutes engaging in such a

         14  race or a contest. This will help the police better

         15  enforce the law and stop the drag racing before it

         16  takes place. That's important to realize. Right now,

         17  in order to approve drag racing it has to basically

         18  happen. In order to prove a felony, you have to

         19  prove reckless endangerment which is very tough to

         20  prove. We've done what we can do. We now put this

         21  into the Administrative Code and we've made the

         22  person who engages in this illegal drag race subject

         23  to a misdemeanor with up to six months in prison or

         24  a fine of up to $600. If you engage in drag racing a

         25  second time within ten years of a conviction of the
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          2  first offense, you are now subject to a misdemeanor

          3  and imprisonment of up to one year and a fine of

          4  $1,000.

          5                 Presently, the law is 30 days for

          6  first offense and $525 and a second offense within

          7  one year which rarely happens, our bill makes it ten

          8  years, is only six months and $750. Again, we're

          9  basically doubling the penalties. Another

         10  interesting point about this bill. Drag races are

         11  often spurred on at the scene by spectators who

         12  actively engage and encourage in the race. This bill

         13  makes such actions illegal and subject those who

         14  engage in this behavior and support a race to be

         15  subject to a violation. Now a crime, but a

         16  violation. This is perhaps a first of its type law

         17  in the country. As I've said before, we now will be

         18  arresting both the fast and the curious. Thank you.

         19  It is cute. Thanks.

         20                 As we all know, drag racing has

         21  deadly consequences. That's a good lead into my

         22  deadly consequences lines; often for the innocent

         23  pedestrians who happen to be crossing the street. At

         24  the hearing in June, the head of the NYPD's Highway

         25  Division set forth the efforts by the NYPD to crack
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          2  down on drag racing. This bill will assist the

          3  Department in that effort and I urge you all to

          4  support this important legislation. I'd just like to

          5  ask the PD to speak briefly on this bill. Susan

          6  Petito, please.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Sure.

          8  Good morning, Mr. Chairman, members of the Council.

          9  I'm Assistant Commissioner Susan Petito of the New

         10  York City Police Department Office of the Deputy

         11  Commissioner of Legal Matters. I'm please to be here

         12  today on behalf of Police Commissioner Raymond Kelly

         13  to thank you for considering Intro. 364A, enhancing

         14  the penalties for drag racing in New York City.

         15                 The bill before you improves our

         16  ability to enforce the prohibition against drag

         17  racing in several ways. It increases the penalties,

         18  expands the scope of the prohibition to include

         19  sidewalks and parking lots, add common sense

         20  indicators for determining whether a drag race is

         21  being conducted or is imminent and creates a

         22  specific new violation for spectators who support

         23  the conduct of such dangerous races.

         24                 We're grateful for your attention to

         25  this issue and appreciate your incorporating our
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          2  concerns in finalizing the language of the bill. We

          3  look forward to seeing this bill enacted into law

          4  and thank you for adding a significant tool to the

          5  Police Department's enforcement options in

          6  preventing needless injury and destruction. Thank

          7  you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you for

          9  your support. It was a pleasure to work with you in

         10  crafting this bill. I'd like to now call the vote.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Vallone.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Aye.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Dilan.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Aye on both.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Foster.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Aye.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Katz.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Yassky.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gonzalez.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Aye on both.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of six in

         24  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         25  abstentions, the item is adopted. Council Members,

                                                            41

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  please sign the Committee Report.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And to clarify,

          4  we only voted on one and we will have a resolution

          5  that has been introduced. It is confusing. It has

          6  been introduced, but not being voted on today which

          7  calls on the State to make drag racing a felony.

          8  We'll be voting on that at a future hearing. Right

          9  now, there is no separate felony under State law to

         10  engage in a drag race. Again, you have to prove

         11  reckless endangerment. We will be voting on that

         12  resolution which we heard testimony on the future.

         13  But thank you all for your vote. We have one more,

         14  much more boring thing to vote on, unfortunately. It

         15  regards police reporting.

         16                 As many of you know, there is a bill

         17  that presently exists for requiring the police to

         18  report to the Council every four months certain

         19  information. That information is vital to us to

         20  have. It includes crime statistics broken down by

         21  felonies and misdemeanors for each precinct in the

         22  City. When we adopted Local Law 11, which is Gail

         23  Brewer's law, which is a very good one, we mandated

         24  that any information that's required to be given out

         25  to City Council be put onto the internet. Obviously,
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          2  the police has some concerns about the information

          3  which they give to the City Council concerning such

          4  things as State Police training manuals having to be

          5  put out over the internet. The only way to avoid

          6  that conflict was to amend the police reporting law

          7  to make a public safety exception.

          8                 We have worked with Gail Brewer on

          9  this who is the primary sponsor of Local Law 11 and

         10  I'm pleased to say that she supports the

         11  legislation. She understands that without this bill,

         12  the Council will not be provided with any vital NYPD

         13  data. Let me be clear. This is not the perfect

         14  solution to this situation. However, it is the only

         15  one available to us. In the opinion of my esteemed

         16  Council, Ted Becker, the only other choice we would

         17  have would be to sue the Police Department for this

         18  information which is a time consuming process and

         19  may not be done until we are all in other offices.

         20  Not out offices, but in other offices. Also, we

         21  would have a good chance of losing that case. This

         22  is the only option available to us if we would like

         23  to continue to receive information from the Police

         24  Department. Again, we do have the support of

         25  Councilwoman Brewer. I'd like to hear again from the
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          2  Police Department on this. Thank you.

          3                 DEPUTY CHIEF GARRISH: Good morning,

          4  Mr. Chairman and members of the Council. I am Deputy

          5  Chief John Garrish (phonetic), the Commanding

          6  Officer of the Office of Management Analysis

          7  Planning of the New York City Police Department. On

          8  behalf of Police Commissioner Raymond Kelly, I am

          9  pleased to be here today to express the Police

         10  Department's support in appreciation for your

         11  consideration of Intro. 443A.

         12                 With this amendment to administrative

         13  code sections 14- 149 and 14- 150, which set forth

         14  the considerable requirements for reporting Police

         15  Department information to the City Council, you will

         16  be addressing a serious concern of the Police

         17  Department and restoring our ability to provide this

         18  information to you in a timely manner. Thank you for

         19  your flexibility in working with us on this

         20  legislation and we look forward to continuing our

         21  productive partnership in making the City a safer

         22  place to live and work. Thank you again.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. I'd

         24  like to call a vote.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Vallone.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Aye.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Dilan.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Aye.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Foster.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Aye.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Katz.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I'd like to vote

          9  aye and also just comment that I do think that the

         10  Chair and the sponsor of the bill made a very good

         11  recommendation for this amendment. We do have a very

         12  good working relationship with the Police

         13  Department. We'd like to keep it that way. The only

         14  way the Council can be of assistance to the Police

         15  Department and vice versa is if we do have a free

         16  informational exchange. I want to thank the Chair

         17  and the Police Department for coming up with this

         18  compromise. I vote aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Yassky.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gonzalez.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Aye.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of six in

         24  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         25  abstentions, the item is adopted. Council Members,

                                                            45

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  please sign the Committee Report. Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That concludes

          4  the business that we had on the agenda that was not

          5  graffiti related. Now I'd like to go back to Council

          6  Member Yassky for the questions.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you,

          8  Chair Vallone. First on the enforcement side, on the

          9  merger question, is it your experience that it's the

         10  same folks that are graffiting buildings -- those

         11  are the same folks who are graffiting or scratching

         12  subway cars or does that tend to be different gangs,

         13  different groups?

         14                 CHIEF YOUNG: I believe it's from the

         15  same population, same group, same motivation.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: In terms of

         17  the merger, do you have some numbers on how, I don't

         18  want to say this is how effective, but just what the

         19  arrest statistics have been of the two different

         20  units. Are they comparable? Does one generate many

         21  more arrests than the other?

         22                 CHIEF YOUNG: Over the years, if we

         23  looked at 2002, and for the Vandals Unit, made total

         24  arrest about 488 and the SOD Unit, if you will, made

         25  a 138. January to the December 2003, again Transit
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          2  made more arrests as well as this year. The Vandals

          3  Unit does make more arrests.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I'm sorry,

          5  it's the Vandals Unit that has been more each year?

          6                 CHIEF YOUNG: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I'm just

          8  curious. What typically happens in these arrests? Do

          9  the people arrested end up paying a fine, community

         10  service? Typically, what ends up usually happening?

         11                 CHIEF YOUNG: From my understanding

         12  and I haven't done an entire analysis of the end

         13  game, but there is nobody going to jail that I can

         14  see.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Assumably not.

         16                 CHIEF YOUNG: To the extent, people

         17  are who fined probably don't have the money to pay

         18  the fine. The end, if you will, there's not much

         19  teeth to it that I can see. I think we'd have to put

         20  more bite into the penalty issue relative to this.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: That's part of

         22  what I'm wondering here. It seems to me that

         23  graffiti is a crime. It's vandalism. It's

         24  destruction of property. I think everyone here is in

         25  agreement on that and plainly you are, of course. I
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          2  think we've made good strides toward treating it

          3  that way in the City. Certainly when I was a kid,

          4  years ago, people thought well it's not a big deal.

          5  Kids will be kids or boys will be boys or girls will

          6  be girls, I suppose. But I think now there really is

          7  a recognition that this is a crime and it needs to

          8  be treated that way. Presumably like you say, these

          9  aren't people that have a lot of money to pay a

         10  fine. What about community service? Are we able to

         11  use that a punishment that both has some teeth and

         12  also some value, I suppose to the community?

         13                 CHIEF YOUNG: We have used probation.

         14  There is people on probation through the Mayor's

         15  Anti- Graffiti Task Force in terms of some clean up

         16  initiatives that certainly whether it's a

         17  disincentive at the end. We are looking at, I

         18  mentioned in my testimony a more centralized

         19  database, intelligence database and in line with

         20  that, I think it will be helpful to us in terms of

         21  identifying the recidivous tags in a local areas as

         22  well, we refer to them as the worst of the worst,

         23  that we're able to identify. Being armed with that

         24  information and the arrest, presenting this to the

         25  local prosecutor to give it a focused attention as
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          2  opposed let's not treat everyone exactly the same.

          3  But based on this intelligence --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: When you have

          5  somebody you bring in for the fifth time deserves --

          6                 CHIEF YOUNG: Sure.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: -- Some

          8  serious treatment.

          9                 CHIEF YOUNG: Sure. And on with this

         10  database on the local level, which the local

         11  enforcement people in addition to the Task Force,

         12  armed with this information, I'm envisioning that

         13  they would present this case to the local

         14  prosecutors to enhance the effort. Whether it would

         15  be mandated community service or a fine or perhaps

         16  incarceration if deemed necessary, that the

         17  information would be given to the prosecutor to

         18  present.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you. I

         20  just have one question for Commissioner Greenspun on

         21  the legislation and Chair Vallone may have asked you

         22  this, but I'm not quite sure I understood the

         23  response. I just want to ask it again. Your

         24  objection, you made several, but two of the

         25  objections made were that the City has no -- to the
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          2  provision about the City being able to clean up

          3  private property without permission. You said, well

          4  there is no mechanism for recouping cost and

          5  therefore, would be a financial burden. But we do

          6  this anyway. I guess I have and again, I know the

          7  City has been very responsive in responding to

          8  complaints of particular areas of graffiti. But

          9  where there is a stubborn problem and a landowner,

         10  property owner, rather it's commercial, residential

         11  who just does not care and is allowing his or her

         12  building to be a blight on the neighborhood, what's

         13  the objection in that situation the City taking

         14  matters into its own hands and cleaning?

         15                 COMMISSIONER GREENSPUN: In the case

         16  of --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I mean, given

         18  that we already do it for free.

         19                 COMMISSIONER GREENSPUN: Well, I'll

         20  tell you why we do it. The one case I can think of

         21  or we're probably thinking of the same thing is an

         22  abandoned lot. An abandoned lot has a health issue

         23  to it, because an abandoned lot that has debris can

         24  attract rats, can attract West Nile Virus, can

         25  attract a whole array of immediate health violations
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          2  so that I haven't studied this on a legal basis, but

          3  I assume the reason why in that case the owner gives

          4  up his or her right to have the government come in

          5  and clean up the property because there is a health

          6  risk there.

          7                 It may be a bit of a jump. I consider

          8  this a blight on par mainly because I spend so much

          9  of my day cleaning it up. I consider this a blight

         10  that's probably on par with West Nile Virus or rats

         11  and everything else. That's just how much I detest

         12  this. Legally though and I'm not a lawyer, but you

         13  probably have a difficulty trying to make that leap

         14  in terms of going on a property. I also think about

         15  the liability issue. You go on there and you bring

         16  power washing truck which does nothing more than

         17  treat the paint with a highly concentrated chemical

         18  and then what happens as you spray it, the graffiti

         19  simply disappears. I can envision situations where

         20  this owner comes up and says, well you damaged my

         21  brick. I want the City to be responsible. I'm going

         22  to sue the City or something like that. That could

         23  be a problem.

         24                 In the few cases that you have had

         25  situations where owners don't want to have it
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          2  cleaned or they just say, I don't want you doing

          3  anything to my property. I don't want you touching

          4  my wall. Just get away, don't touch it. That's

          5  probably the issue there.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Chief, you

          8  said you're the City Coordinator and that Captain

          9  Fortunato who is here will be the Captain of this

         10  new Vandals Graffiti Unit?

         11                 CHIEF YOUNG: Well, it will be an

         12  oversight command and the captain right now is

         13  creating a new section overhead. He's currently in

         14  charge of the Homeless Outreach Unit.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That was my

         16  question.

         17                 CHIEF YOUNG: Which again has within

         18  the Transit Bureau's structure, but with Citywide

         19  oversight and responsibility to the homeless

         20  condition. This is a similar model. So what we've

         21  done is creating a section where the Captain will

         22  provide oversight to both the homeless and to the

         23  Citywide Vandals Task Force. And Lieutenant Mona

         24  (phonetic) who you are familiar with in this

         25  Committee will remain as the Commanding Officer of
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          2  the Citywide Vandals Task Force.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So Captain

          4  Fortunato who is in charge of the Transit Homeless

          5   --

          6                 CHIEF YOUNG: Citywide.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Citywide?

          8                 CHIEF YOUNG: Citywide.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Is now going to

         10  be given the additional responsibility of being in

         11  charge of this new unit?

         12                 CHIEF YOUNG: Oversight to this new

         13  unit, that's correct. Where before we had no Captain

         14  providing oversight. We'll have a Captain, he'll be

         15  my liaison. He'll be the liaison from the Transit

         16  Bureau as well and again providing oversight to

         17  coordinate the enforcement efforts from the various

         18  other local units, precincts, housing and housing

         19  developments with my additional oversight. Now, as

         20  with any new program, this is going to be under

         21  reassessment and as I indicated to you, the planning

         22  is a work in progress with a target date of mid-

         23  October. As we review this and look at my testimony,

         24  the final initiative is to quality assurance

         25  performance indicator oversight which I will be
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          2  looking at to see and measure the effectiveness of

          3  this entire program. We have an insurance policy, if

          4  you will, to ensure that we're going to working

          5  smarter, better and improving on what's going on.

          6  This is not designed to be dysfunctional in any way

          7  but to be an added asset to the City's needs.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: It seems like a

          9  huge added responsibility to someone who is already

         10  in charge of one our City's biggest problems in

         11  homeless to now be placed in charge of one our other

         12  biggest problems in graffiti. I hope you're getting

         13  a big raise, Captain Fortunato. You think that it's

         14  your professional opinion that one person should be

         15  in charge of both of these problems and not make a

         16  separate position?

         17                 CHIEF YOUNG: As at this time, I think

         18  one person can do it. I have a lot of confidence in

         19  Captain Fortunato. Certainly I'll be working with

         20  him on a daily basis and we'll be assessing this as

         21  we move along. Right now, I believe this is the

         22  right move to make in the organization.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I asked earlier

         24  about other duties of the transit vandal squad. My

         25  sources indicate to me that addition to graffiti
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          2  that they work on the theft of copper from the

          3  subway wires, theft of copper wires from the subway

          4  stations, the metro card thefts and also involved

          5  with transit response for terrorism among other

          6  areas. I also get informed that graffiti does not

          7  account for the major portion of the arrest of the

          8  Transit Vandals Unit right now. Can you please

          9  comment on those statistics?

         10                 CHIEF YOUNG: You know, that's not

         11  true relative to the mission of the Vandals Unit. I

         12  know who your sources are. I'm here to testify in

         13  good faith and as I look at the mission of the

         14  Vandals Unit, yes, do they have this? How much of

         15  theft of copper takes place? Is this a major part of

         16  the daily day to day operations? The answer is no.

         17  Yes, if there were someone to steal copper, it's not

         18  an overwhelming task for the Vandals Unit. At the

         19  same time, we're expanding that. We're going to have

         20  more people on the ground focused in on graffiti as

         21  you might say outside of the system as well. We're

         22  going to be doing a better job outside of the City.

         23  That's the goal of this and that's what we'll be

         24  measuring ourselves against to the extent that we're

         25  not doing a better job, then we're going to go back
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          2  and revisit it and see what we can do. But right now

          3  we're going to doing more.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Out of the total

          5  arrest made by the Vandals Unit, what percentage

          6  would be graffiti related?

          7                 CHIEF YOUNG: Seventy- five percent.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Council Member

          9  Foster.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Good morning.

         11  Just some quick questions. Do you have statistics by

         12  borough on the amount of clean up that's done by

         13  borough and then the amount of graffiti that's

         14  reported, number one. Number two, how do you deal,

         15  like I'm just thinking in my neighborhood, there are

         16  some graffiti that's put up as memorials. If some

         17  has died or anything like that, how do you deal with

         18  that? The third question is just what type of

         19  education is in place.

         20                 I'll give you an example. My parents

         21  house, they've lived in the neighborhood for 40

         22  something years and literally we have a can of paint

         23  in the garage and the handyman comes and paints at

         24  least every few weeks because no matter what, it

         25  seems as soon as the garage is painted, it's tagged
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          2  again. And it literally can happen -- you go in the

          3  house and you come out and I'm like Dad, look, they

          4  got the garage. What kind of education is in place

          5  to kind of -- and I assume and I may be wrong. I

          6  assume it's young kids who have a sharpie or a pen

          7  or something. Maybe it's an adult. But do we have

          8  any education in place in terms of and it sounds

          9  very babyish, but you know you don't write on other

         10  people's property. Things like that.

         11                 CHIEF YOUNG: Sure. Well, I just had a

         12  meeting recently with the Deputy Commissioner of

         13  Community Affairs and wanted to talk about the

         14  efforts as it relates to education. Because in my

         15  testimony, I talk about enforcement, clean up and

         16  education. In terms of brainstorming some thoughts

         17  or ideas, how we can get the kids involved or being

         18  aware of being destructive. While I haven't looked

         19  at their curriculum, the gang resistance education,

         20  great training, that takes place in school; the

         21  Captain told me that they would be taking that and

         22  with our input either enhance what's already there

         23  as it relates to graffiti or introduce it as part of

         24  the focus.

         25                 Also, in line with that and again
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          2  brainstorming ideas that looking for role models in

          3  the community that the young kids can relate to. We

          4  spoke about popular radio channel or talk about some

          5  sports figures. Perhaps some people in the music

          6  industry that could say, this is not a good idea.

          7  You wouldn't see graffiti on my house somewhere. It

          8  takes away the value of your parent's property and

          9  your neighborhood property, things of that nature.

         10                 From that sense, I'd be looking for a

         11  whole package as it relates to education. So, yes,

         12  we will enhance education in the schools. We'll

         13  reach out to the using the community affairs

         14  officers in the precinct and the youth officers

         15  which gets us into that local initiatives with the

         16  coordinator in addition to enforcement. Be looking

         17  for that local coordinator to use those resources.

         18  Whether it's the youth officers, the community

         19  affairs officers to reach out to do that education

         20  type model. But I think education even goes beyond

         21  that. If we're looking to grab the kids and say you

         22  know, this is not really a cool thing to do. I think

         23  it's a whole holistic approach to education.

         24                 COMMISSIONER GREENSPUN: Let me just

         25  answer the other two questions that you had. Yes, we
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          2  do keep those statistics. I had hope to come in hand

          3  with them today, but there was a problem accessing

          4  the file. We have them broken down by borough. We, I

          5  believe, have them broken down by councilmanic

          6  districts. If you were interested, I could have

          7  someone reach out to your office and tell you how

          8  often that we've been there and I will just say now

          9  that if you're not pleased with those statistics, I

         10  would invite yourself and anyone on the Committee,

         11  as well as the entire City Council, each member. We

         12  work very, very closely with many members of the

         13  Council to schedule these clean ups. At your

         14  convenience, what you would do is use your resources

         15  to gather the waivers in advance of our arrival.

         16  Then what we'd simply do is we would come in and we

         17  would spend the time or a couple of days in the

         18  area.

         19                 Some of the Council Members who most

         20  recently have taken advantage of this who are not

         21  here today. But I can think about Council Member

         22  Brewer and Council Member McMahon, two members who

         23  we spend considerable amount of time going into

         24  their districts and cleaning up. The other thing is,

         25  in terms of a mural, this actually goes directly to
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          2  the issue of what we talked about earlier with the

          3  word unauthorized. In the case of a mural, one would

          4  suppose that the reason it's there is because there

          5  was tacit approval given by the owner and therefore,

          6  it's technically not even a crime to have it painted

          7  there. Because you have the owner who gave

          8  permission. That's why we wouldn't in a case like

          9  that remove a mural.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Thank you. If

         11  you can get me that information, I'd appreciate it.

         12                 COMMISSIONER GREENSPUN: Sure.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

         15  Commissioner, I like the problem accessing the file

         16  line. I'm going to use that when my daughter goes to

         17  school. When she doesn't have her homework --

         18                 COMMISSIONER GREENSPUN: It's really

         19  true. It goes to show you when I'm the only one in

         20  the office and I can't open up a file, it says

         21  something.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Commissioner, a

         23  quick question. One of the reasons we're concerned

         24  about this merger is that it's happening at the same

         25  time that the Department of Transportation is
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          2  apparently severely cutting back its Bridge Cleaning

          3  Unit. Do you have any information on that?

          4                 COMMISSIONER GREENSPUN: I reached out

          5  to the Department of Transportation and my

          6  understanding is there needs to be a distinction

          7  made between the removal of their graffiti budget as

          8  it relates to City owned bridges and as compared to

          9  State owned bridges which are numerous. My

         10  understanding in my conversations with the

         11  Department of Transportation is that State money is

         12  available through the State Arterial Maintenance

         13  Program to continue to remove graffiti on those

         14  State arterial maintenance highways, so whether it's

         15  overpasses or bridges.

         16                 I think as it relates to the City

         17  owned bridges, there are resources left, they are

         18  just not there at the same level as they were prior

         19  to 2002. What will often is that if they get enough

         20  complaints or if the damage is sort of very obvious,

         21  the Department of Transportation will have to pull

         22  painters off their other bridges and have them clean

         23  it. I think there is good news in the sense that DOT

         24  continues to take advantage of some State funds and

         25  to the extent that they are able to clean those
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          2  bridges. It's not as if no bridge in the City will

          3  ever get cleaned again because of a budget cut. I

          4  think there is still some good news there. Even on

          5  the City owned bridges, there is enough. Look, I

          6  work very closely with Commissioner Weinshall. I'm

          7  sure that reductions of any kind are very, very

          8  difficult but at the same time, the grand scheme of

          9  things recognizing what she has on her plate in

         10  terms of bridges and maintenance and transportation

         11  and express buses and ferries and everything else,

         12  sooner or later there has to be some priority and

         13  I'm sympathetic to that.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I'm aware that

         15  there are about 800 State bridges that we have here

         16  and those will still be cleaned with the State

         17  money. I've been unable to get the amount of City

         18  bridges. Do you have a number on that?

         19                 COMMISSIONER GREENSPUN: I don't have

         20  that number.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: There are very

         22  many of them, obviously. I'm very distressed by any

         23  cut back in our graffiti budget especially in light

         24  of your testimony here today and our statements here

         25  today. Our bridges are perhaps most visible edifices
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          2  here and to have them marred with graffiti at the

          3  same time we're severely cutting the budget of the

          4  DOT is not acceptable. DOT is not under my

          5  jurisdiction in this Committee. I have written to

          6  them for answers and I expect them soon and we will

          7  be following up on that. Council Member Gonzalez.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Yes, good

          9  morning, Commissioner. Good morning, Chief. I have a

         10  question in respect to your numbers that you stated

         11  about the landlords being resistant to clean up. If

         12  there is any possibility, in District 38, I

         13  definitely would love to be able to work with some

         14  kind of campaign so it's urging them whether it's

         15  through the Community Board, possibly the BID, or

         16  even just with community based organizations. I am a

         17  landlord too and to quite honestly to clean a

         18  building is what needs to be done. I really don't

         19  understand why there is resistance. Is there any

         20  reason that you have?

         21                 COMMISSIONER GREENSPUN: There is a

         22  two- fold challenge when it comes to commercial

         23  establishments. One is sometimes identifying the

         24  owner or the management company. And then there are

         25  a handful occasions where, yes, we will contact the
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          2  managing agent, the superintendent, the owner and

          3  they will simply say, we don't want it cleaned. I

          4  can tell you anecdotally that your district is not

          5  one of those areas. We've actually had some

          6  phenomenon success in Sunset Park, particularly on

          7  8th Avenue. We've worked very, very closely with the

          8  Asian community and they have embraced us

          9  wholeheartedly. I think what we can probably do is

         10  we'll check our database and then see whether or not

         11  there have been any recalcitrant owners and then we

         12  can bring that matter to your attention.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Yes, because

         14  although I know you've done an incredible job and I

         15  definitely want to continue to work the

         16  Administration and with this program, I want you to

         17  understand that there are a lot of areas in Sunset

         18  Park that definitely need clean up. I mean my gate

         19  in my office is a matter of fact just graffiti. I

         20  just moved there. It's brand new. These are things

         21  that go on everyday. I definitely want to continue

         22  to work with you.

         23                 The other thing is in respect to your

         24  statement with prevention, that's what needs to

         25  happen in respect to our beacons and maybe working
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          2  with the young people and teaching them. Because at

          3  birth, prevention begins at birth and so if you get

          4  the parents and you involve people in understanding

          5  what the ramifications of graffiti are, I do believe

          6  it can work for all of us. I would suggest and urge

          7  that my office work with you as well in targeting

          8  what programs or what beacon programs. Because I

          9  think they definitely could utilize from the

         10  information you have. We get a lot of parents there.

         11                 CHIEF YOUNG: Great, I concur 100

         12  percent. Thank you.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Okay.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         15  Council Member. And I agree also that more notice

         16  has to be given about the good work that

         17  Commissioner Greenspun and the Chief are doing and

         18  that they will come out free of charge and clean any

         19  property. I have though just by way of example two

         20  big commercial buildings in my district that I've

         21  reached out to personally to tell them about your

         22  program and who have refused assistance. That was

         23  the impetus behind this bill because I refuse to

         24  continue to go past these buildings and look at

         25  their graffiti. I refuse to take no for an answer
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          2  from these people. That's why we're here today.

          3  Council Member Dilan.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Thank you, Mr.

          5  Chairman, for the follow- up question to Chief

          6  Young. I did intend to ask this question during my

          7  first round of questioning toward yourself. The

          8  merger, does it represent an attempt by the Police

          9  Department or the City to save money and if so, how

         10  are savings planned to be achieved and by how much

         11  and if it's an enhancement of say funding to the

         12  Police Department, how so and by how much? Outside

         13  of personnel which you -- if it's an enhancement,

         14  outside of personnel which you said would not be

         15  affected and would come from the PS budget. That you

         16  did answer earlier.

         17                 CHIEF YOUNG: Either saving monies, I

         18  think the reorganization was looking at what the

         19  mission of these two units are and assessing whether

         20  it made sense organizationally to have a bifurcated

         21  units out there. Is there anything that we can do

         22  managerial wise, organizational wise to allow us to

         23  work smarter. To centralize a unit on its face is a

         24  savings because it saves you administrative staff.

         25  In terms of resources, roll calls, vacation
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          2  selections and things of that nature. By its very

          3  nature, organizationally having one unit saves you

          4  administration. I haven't really looked at that way

          5  because the Department has committed additional

          6  resources to that into this area. When you taking

          7  about personnel costs and the number of people that

          8  we're talking about, we're talking a million dollar

          9  initiative, if not more, in the commitment of

         10  resources to address this particular problem.

         11  Organizationally by tradition, you would save in

         12  administrative cost.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: I would just

         14  take that to mean that if there were any savings it

         15  would be minimal?

         16                 CHIEF YOUNG: It's going to cost us

         17  more. We put more people into the unit. The entire

         18  budget, if you look at the entire Police Department

         19  budget, 95 percent is people. And if I'm telling you

         20  that I'm going to add an additional sergeants, a

         21  lieutenant and ten cops, that's more. I can't

         22  translate it into a cost savings. It is a over a

         23  million dollar in people we're putting into this.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: I didn't say it

         25  would be a cost savings. I asked specifically if

                                                            67

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  there were going to be a cost savings, how much and

          3  if it was going to be an expansion, how much. So I

          4  guess the answer then is a million dollars.

          5                 CHIEF YOUNG: Well, whatever the cost

          6  are, I didn't do an assessment. Whatever the cost

          7  are, ten cops, three sergeants and a lieutenant,

          8  that's what it's going to cost. Relative to savings,

          9  I think it would be somewhat administrative savings

         10  cost by centralizing the unit. Although, I haven't

         11  looked at it that closely yet.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: The additional

         14  sergeants and lieutenant, will they also be doing

         15  double duty like Captain Fortunato or are they

         16  dedicated specifically to this Task Force?

         17                 CHIEF YOUNG: They will be dedicated

         18  to the Task Force.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I'd just also

         20  like to recognize the presence of Council Member

         21  Jennings from Queens. Thanks for joining us. I

         22  believe we are through with our questions. I'd like

         23  to thank you both for the good work you do everyday

         24  and for your testimony today. Commissioner

         25  Greenspun, especially since we work together so
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          2  closely, I look forward to continue to work with you

          3  and to ask your advice on changing this bill perhaps

          4  to put in a form that you would not be as opposed to

          5  But thank you both for coming out today.

          6                 COMMISSIONER GREENSPUN: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Our next and

          8  last witness will be Frank Ricci from the Rent

          9  Stabilization Association. You can now come forward.

         10  Thank you, Mr. Ricci, you may begin.

         11                 MR. RICCI: Thank you, Chairman

         12  Vallone, members of the Committee. My name is Frank

         13  Ricci. I'm the Director of Government Affairs for

         14  the Rent Stabilization Association. For the record,

         15  we are trade association that represents building

         16  owners in New York City. We have about 25,000

         17  members. Most of those members own buildings of six

         18  units or more. Of those 25,000, about 21,000 own 40

         19  units or less. For the record, I think Chairman

         20  Vallone, you made a statement earlier on this

         21  hearing about and my comments are limited to just

         22  Intro. 299, I think it is today.

         23                 Many of our members who own buildings

         24  with six, ten, 12, 15 units either live in the

         25  building or live within the neighborhood. They may
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          2  own one or two buildings. My experience has been

          3  there's not usually a managing agent who is in

          4  charge of the building. But it's the owner

          5  themselves when it's a building of that size. We do

          6  have a significant amount of members with buildings

          7  between three and six units also. The last time

          8  there was a hearing on this bill, I believe was last

          9  December, I testified against it then. My testimony

         10  is almost the same this time. We agree

         11  wholeheartedly with the concept --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Then we have it,

         13  thanks good-bye.

         14                 MR. RICCI: Well, you made one

         15  modification and it's a great modification. But it's

         16  a step in the right direction. We agree with the

         17  concept on a personal level as well as an

         18  organizational level, I have no sympathy for an

         19  owner who doesn't remove the graffiti. The

         20  organization, we encourage owners to do it. It's

         21  common sense. There is no reason to leave it on. But

         22  as I understand from your staff and comments I get

         23  and questions from Council Members from time to

         24  time, there is an owner who for some reason just

         25  doesn't care.
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          2                 I also get comments from or get

          3  requests I should say from elected officials about

          4  an owner who's not removing graffiti and I've

          5  personally called many owners about this. Often

          6  times, I found out the owner has no knowledge of it

          7  because the managing agent or the super has never

          8  told the owner. So once I'm able to get to the

          9  owner, I think it expedites the removal of the

         10  graffiti.

         11                 I would have to agree with

         12  Commissioner Greenspun --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Mr. Ricci,

         14  specifically what's the amendment that you support?

         15                 MR. RICCI: It's my understanding that

         16  the new bill allows the City to go in and actually

         17  remove it if they sign the waiver. Our biggest

         18  problem is the 30 day time frame within which to

         19  remove graffiti. If you don't remove it in 30 days,

         20  you get a fine. There is problems with getting a

         21  notice like that in the middle of winter where you

         22  can't go out within 30 days and remove graffiti.

         23  There is problems where you might need special

         24  equipment. It never ceases to amaze when I travel

         25  around the City and I try and use public
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          2  transportation all the time, that I'm on an elevated

          3  subway in different parts of the City and I see

          4  graffiti in the second and third floor, just below

          5  the roof line of a building. I can't figure out how

          6  the person putting the graffiti on there got up

          7  there to begin with. It's no easy task to remove it.

          8  The smaller the building is, the harder it is to get

          9  any contractor in New York City to come and do work

         10  for you.

         11                 I've had personal experience with

         12  that where it took me two years to get someone to

         13  come and repair a cornerstone of my building that

         14  was falling down because they just gravitate to the

         15  larger commercial properties. That's where the money

         16  is. Small owners have a difficult time in tracking

         17  contractors. So to do it in 30 days really makes no

         18  sense.

         19                 I wanted to address the issue that

         20  Council Member Foster raised about sometimes you see

         21  memorials. I've had more than a few complaints over

         22  the years from some of our members and they all

         23  happen to be in the Bronx as it turns out, where

         24  there is overnight a memorial springs up on the

         25  building. It's not with the approval of the owner.
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          2  However, when the super or the managing agent has

          3  gone to remove it, they are threatened physically

          4  with harm because the local people who put that

          5  memorial up there, don't want it removed. That's a

          6  real problem.

          7                 All this gets back to the temptation

          8  at some point of the City of New York using this

          9  bill to generate revenue. I think Commissioner

         10  Greenspun and the gentlemen from the Police

         11  Department have all good intentions now, but there

         12  has just been too many laws done over the years that

         13  ultimately when the City gets in a budget crunch and

         14  agencies have to start either reducing the their

         15  workforce or cutting their budget, then they look at

         16  different ways to generate revenue. That's our

         17  problem with the 30 day time frame in this bill.

         18  That's why we still oppose it. I stand here ready to

         19  work with the Council as well as the community

         20  assistance unit and the Police Department to lend

         21  whatever effort we can to have our organization

         22  reach out to more owners and encourage them to just

         23  do it either through the City or on their own.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: The 30 day

         25  situation is going to be changed to a more
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          2  reasonable time period. I know you would oppose any

          3  time period, but do you have one that would be more

          4  workable?

          5                 MR. RICCI: No, I don't have one, but

          6  I would say maybe a series of more warnings before

          7  you ultimately place a fine on someone is probably a

          8  little bit more reasonable. Once again, if you get a

          9  notice in the middle of January, sometimes you can't

         10  get out there until April to effectively remove it

         11  in a responsible way.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That's a good

         13  suggestion. Thank you. Do you have any other

         14  suggestions in either amending this bill or going on

         15  a separate direction to handle the graffiti problem

         16  that we can do here at City Council?

         17                 MR. RICCI: I think better publicity

         18  of the City's program to remove it for free. I would

         19  venture to say probably most of my members don't

         20  realize that the City will come in and remove it for

         21  free. I happen to live in Councilwoman Brewer's

         22  district and I was surprised as a homeowner, a few

         23  months ago I got a letter from her as a homeowner

         24  and I guess she blanketed the entire district asking

         25  everyone to please identify any graffiti. Notify her
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          2  office and then she explained the whole program so

          3  that owners could sign the waivers and then have the

          4  City come in and remove it. It was a tremendous

          5  success.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Council Member

          7  Jennings.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Mr. Ricci,

          9  people who have their homes or buildings vandalized,

         10  do you consider them the victim?

         11                 MR. RICCI: Yes, I do.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: If further

         13  victimized but not only they have this awful marks

         14  on their building or scars, but at the same time

         15  they have to pay themselves to remove it. Is that

         16  correct?

         17                 MR. RICCI: Well, yes. Okay. I'm

         18  sorry. I'll let you finish your question.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Are you

         20  aware of insurance that covers the removal of the

         21  graffiti off the buildings?

         22                 MR. RICCI: No, I'm not. Most

         23  insurance policies for most buildings especially now

         24  a days with the way insurance goes, there is usually

         25  at a minimum for a small homeowner, like a one or
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          2  two family homeowner, a $500 deductible. For my

          3  members who have six units or more, the deductible

          4  is anywhere from; it's probably around $5,000 now.

          5  It used to be a $,1000. But because insurance rates

          6  have gone up, the only way owners can afford

          7  insurance is to get a higher deductible. Insurance

          8  is not even viable for removal of graffiti.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: So in a

         10  sense, this bill kind of double victimized the

         11  property owner because your building vandalized and

         12  you pay out your own pocket to remove it and now

         13  with this bill comes in, if you don't remove the

         14  graffiti, the City comes back and fines you on top

         15  of that.

         16                 MR. RICCI: I'm not here to defend the

         17  bill. But paying attention to the whole hearing

         18  today, I think the reason is --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Is my

         20  characterization right? Because you're here to

         21  oppose the bill, I assume.

         22                 MR. RICCI: I oppose the bill because

         23  as I said at the outset, we support the concept. I'm

         24  not going to defend any owner who doesn't make an

         25  effort to remove graffiti. It's my understanding
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          2  that the Chairman put the bill in because there are

          3  a handful of owners out there who don't do it. I

          4  guess the real question is how do you get to that

          5  handful of owners.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: But removing

          7  graffiti is costly though. How much money do you

          8  think, are you aware of, an average does it cost a

          9  property owner to remove graffiti?

         10                 MR. RICCI: There is no average.

         11  Because as I said before, all of sudden you're now

         12  seeing graffiti in places where you never saw

         13  graffiti before. The second, third, fourth floor of

         14  a building. To remove it properly, you may now have

         15  to hire someone to go out and hang a scaffold off

         16  the side of a building to remove it. That's a

         17  minimum a few thousand dollars.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Right. It

         19  averages somewhere between it could be $500 to a

         20  couple thousand dollars especially if you have to

         21  hire people with scaffolding and after removing the

         22  graffiti, there is nothing really to prevent the

         23  perpetrator from coming back again two weeks later

         24  and again putting it right back on the property

         25  again. Is that correct?
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          2                 MR. RICCI: In many cases, that would

          3  be correct. But in a number of cases also, it could

          4  be as simple as what Councilwoman Foster had

          5  suggested that her parents have to do is you have a

          6  bucket of paint in your garage and it may be small

          7  area which takes you 20 minutes. There is no

          8  average.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Do you have

         10  any idea in terms of a warning or a reasonable time

         11  frame for a property owner to remove the graffiti

         12  off his wall?

         13                 MR. RICCI: No, that's something that

         14  I'd like to go back and talk to my members about and

         15  get a sense from them as to what on a practical

         16  level happens to them on a daily or monthly basis.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Let's go

         18  back to the financial burden of removing the

         19  graffiti. Is there any suggestions that you have in

         20  terms of how an indigent property owner, many people

         21  make their assumption because a person owns a

         22  property, they're wealthy, they're rich. But many

         23  people who own properties are barely paying their

         24  mortgage and paying the utilities and here comes

         25  this unfortunate incident of graffiti being placed
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          2  on their building and now they have the burden of

          3  having to remove it.

          4                 MR. RICCI: That's why I said, the one

          5  part of this bill that we like that was changed from

          6  the prior bill and what Commissioner Greenspun had

          7  talked about today was the City will remove it for

          8  free. You just have to sign the waiver. I can't

          9  figure out why an owner would not sign the waiver if

         10  he did have a financial hardship and wanted to have

         11  the graffiti removed. It makes no sense to me as an

         12  owner.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I was going to

         15  sum up the prior testimony also. That there is no

         16  financial excuse for a multiple family homeowner not

         17  to have graffiti removed because the City will

         18  remove it for free as will every independent Council

         19  office arrange to have this graffiti removed for

         20  free. Council Member Katz.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Yes, I was just

         22  curious. I know you were in the audience when I was

         23  asking my questions and heard some of my concerns

         24  about going onto the property of a building owner

         25  without their permission. I'm just curious as to
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          2  whether RSA has any suggestions on how to get those

          3  handful of landlords to actually clean their

          4  graffiti. As you know in our communities, it is

          5  really a blight not only on the commercial property,

          6  but also on residential. It's much easier to get

          7  sometimes to obviously single family homes. But in

          8  some of the buildings that you're talking about, it

          9  is sometimes impossible to reach those handful. Do

         10  you have any suggestions? If not today, if RSA can

         11  actually think about what you would do instead of

         12  the legislation that the Council is proposing?

         13                 MR. RICCI: Yes, I don't have any

         14  suggestions today. As I said though earlier in my

         15  testimony, there have been a number of times when

         16  some Council Member or assembly person or State

         17  senator has called our office and said we can't get

         18  this owner to remove it. We've sent five letters.

         19  Then I call the owner and I find out it might be a

         20  managing company and that the actual managing agent

         21  of the building or the super has been unresponsive.

         22  That's done the trick a number of times. But I know

         23  through Council Member Vallone's staff, there are a

         24  couple of owners who are just, nothing gets through

         25  to them. I have to give it more thought.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you.

          3                 MR. RICCI: But I'd be more than happy

          4  to work on this problem with anyone here.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you, Mr.

          6  Ricci, for your suggestions. We will work on those

          7  and look forward to working with you in that regard.

          8  We are going to keep the vote here open for the few

          9  Council Members who are on their way. And we do need

         10  Council Member Jennings to give his vote. I'll

         11  explain it to you in a moment. But thank you all for

         12  coming today.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Committee on Public

         14  Safety, Council Member Jennings, proposed

         15  introduction 364A.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Opposed.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Intro. 443A.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Public safety, Council

         20  Member Gennaro.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: I vote aye on

         22  both measures before the Committee today. Is that

         23  good enough?

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Proposed Introduction

         25  364A, is now adopted by a vote of eight in the
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          2  affirmative, one in the negative and no abstentions.

          3  Proposed Introduction 443- A is now adopted by a

          4  vote of nine in the affirmative, zero in the

          5  negative, and no abstentions. Thank you.

          6                 (Meeting adjourned at 11:45 a.m.)
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